

SPECIAL PUBLICATION 400-22

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE / National Bureau of Standards

Semiconductor Measurement Technology:

Microelectronic Test Pattern NBS-3 for Evaluating the Resistivity-Dopant Density Relationship of Silicon

NATIONAL BUREAU OF STANDARDS

The National Bureau of Standards¹ was established by an act of Congress March 3, 1901. The Bureau's overall goal is to strengthen and advance the Nation's science and technology and facilitate their effective application for public benefit. To this end, the Bureau conducts research and provides: (1) a basis for the Nation's physical measurement system, (2) scientific and technological services for industry and government, (3) a technical basis for equity in trade, and (4) technical services to promote public safety. The Bureau consists of the Institute for Basic Standards, the Institute for Materials Research, the Institute for Applied Technology, the Institute for Computer Sciences and Technology, and the Office for Information Programs.

THE INSTITUTE FOR BASIC STANDARDS provides the central basis within the United States of a complete and consistent system of physical measurement; coordinates that system with measurement systems of other nations; and furnishes essential services leading to accurate and uniform physical measurements throughout the Nation's scientific community, industry, and commerce. The Institute consists of the Office of Measurement Services, the Office of Radiation Measurement and the following Center and divisions:

Applied Mathematics — Electricity — Mechanics — Heat — Optical Physics — Center for Radiation Research: Nuclear Sciences; Applied Radiation — Laboratory Astrophysics² — Cryogenics² — Electromagnetics² — Time and Frequency².

THE INSTITUTE FOR MATERIALS RESEARCH conducts materials research leading to improved methods of measurement, standards, and data on the properties of well-characterized materials needed by industry, commerce, educational institutions, and Government; provides advisory and research services to other Government agencies; and develops, produces, and distributes standard reference materials. The Institute consists of the Office of Standard Reference Materials, the Office of Air and Water Measurement, and the following divisions:

Analytical Chemistry — Polymers — Metallurgy — Inorganic Materials — Reactor Radiation — Physical Chemistry.

THE INSTITUTE FOR APPLIED TECHNOLOGY provides technical services to promote the use of available technology and to facilitate technological innovation in industry and Government; cooperates with public and private organizations leading to the development of technological standards (including mandatory safety standards), codes and methods of test; and provides technical advice and services to Government agencies upon request. The Institute consists of the following divisions and Centers:

Standards Application and Analysis — Electronic Technology — Center for Consumer Product Technology: Product Systems Analysis; Product Engineering — Center for Building Technology: Structures, Materials, and Life Safety; Building Environment; Technical Evaluation and Application — Center for Fire Research: Fire Science; Fire Safety Engineering.

THE INSTITUTE FOR COMPUTER SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGY conducts research and provides technical services designed to aid Government agencies in improving cost effectiveness in the conduct of their programs through the selection, acquisition, and effective utilization of automatic data processing equipment; and serves as the principal focus within the executive branch for the development of Federal standards for automatic data processing equipment, techniques, and computer languages. The Institute consists of the following divisions:

Computer Services — Systems and Software — Computer Systems Engineering — Information Technology.

THE OFFICE FOR INFORMATION PROGRAMS promotes optimum dissemination and accessibility of scientific information generated within NBS and other agencies of the Federal Government; promotes the development of the National Standard Reference Data System and a system of information analysis centers dealing with the broader aspects of the National Measurement System; provides appropriate services to ensure that the NBS staff has optimum accessibility to the scientific information of the world. The Office consists of the following organizational units:

Office of Standard Reference Data — Office of Information Activities — Office of Technical Publications — Library — Office of International Relations — Office of International Standards.

 $^{^1}$ Headquarters and Laboratories at Gaithersburg, Maryland, unless otherwise noted; mailing address Washington, D.C. 20234.

² Located at Boulder, Colorado 80302.

Semiconductor Measurement Technology:



Microelectronic Test Pattern NBS-3 for Evaluating the Resistivity-Dopant Density Relationship of Silicon

t. special Publication no. 400-22

Martin G. Buehler

Electronic Technology Division Institute for Applied Technology National Bureau of Standards Washington, D.C. 20234

Jointly Supported by: The National Bureau of Standards, The Defense Nuclear Agency, The Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency, and The Navy Strategic Systems Project Office



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, Elliot L. Richardson, Secretary

Dr. Betsy Ancker-Johnson, Assistant Secretary for Science and Technology NATIONAL BUREAU OF STANDARDS, Ernest Ambler, Acting Director

Issued June 1976

US

Library of Congress Catalog Card Number: 76-600032

National Bureau of Standards Special Publication 400-22 Nat. Bur. Stand. (U.S.), Spec. Publ. 400-22, 57 pages (June 1976) CODEN: XNBSAV

> U.S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE WASHINGTON: 1976

For sale by the Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 20402 (Order by SD Catalog No. C13.10:400-22). Price \$1.45 (Add 25 percent additional for other than U.S. mailing).

CONTENTS

PAGE

1.	Introdu	uction	1
2.	Design		3
3.	Test St	tructures	6
4.	Resist	ors	7
	4.1.	Base Sheet Resistor (VDP), Structure 3.22	7
	4.2.	Base Sheet Resistor (B), Structure 3.28	8
	4.3.	Base Sheet Resistor (VDP, FP, CS), Structure 3.11	9
	4.4.	Incremental Base Sheet Resistor (VDP), Structure 3.30	10
	4.5.	Emitter Sheet Resistor (VDP), Structure 3.21	11
	4.6.	Emitter Sheet Resistor (B), Structure 3.27	11
	4.7.	Metal Sheet Resistor (VDP), Structure 3.20	12
	4.8.	Metal-to-Base Contact Resistor, Structure 3.24	13
	4.9.	Metal-to-Emitter Contact Resistor, Structure 3.23	14
	4.10.	Metal Step-Coverage Resistor, Structure 3.33	14
	4.11.	Collector Resistor (FP, CS), Structure 3.1	15
	4.12.	Collector Spreading Resistor (Small), Structure 3.12	16
	4.13.	Collector Spreading Resistor (Large), Structure 3.18	17
	4.14.	Collector Resistor (DGR), Structure 3.7	18
	4.15.	Collector Four-Probe Resistor, Structure 3.17	19
	4.16.	Collector Hall Effect Resistor, Structure 3.26	20
5.	MOS Cap	pacitors	21
	5.1.	MOS Capacitor Over Collector (FP, CS), Structure 3.8	21
	5.2.	MOS Capacitor Over Collector, Structure 3.19	22
	5.3.	MOS Capacitor Over Collector, Structure 3.25	22
	5.4.	MOS Capacitor Over Base, Structure 3.2	23
	5.5.	MOS Capacitor Over Emitter, Structure 3.3	24
6.	Diodes		25
	6.1.	Base-Collector Diode (FP, CS), Structure 3.10	25
	6.2.	Base-Collector Diode (FP, CS), Structure 3.14	26
	6.3.	Emitter-Base Diode (FP), Structure 3.9	27

7.	Transi	stors	• •	•	•••	28
	7.1.	Bipolar Transistor, Structure 3.13		•	••	28
	7.2.	Tetrode Transistor, Structure 3.6	• •	•	•••	28
	7.3.	MOS Transistor, Structure 3.16	• •	•	• •	30
	7.4.	MOS Transistor (Circular), Structure 3.15	• •	•	•••	31
8.	Miscel	laneous	• •	•	•••	32
	8.1.	Surface Profilometer Structure, Structure 3.29	•	•	••	32
	8.2.	Etch-Control Structures 3.31 B, E, C, M	•	•	•••	33
	8.3.	Resolution Structures, Structure 3.32 B, C, M	•	•	••	34
	8.4.	Alignment Markers, Structures 3.4 N, P	•	•	•••	34
	8.5.	NBS Logo, Structure 3.5	•	•	••	34
9.	An <i>n-p</i>	-n Transistor Fabrication Process	•	•	•••	35
10.	Test P	attern NBS-3 Measured Values	•	•	••	36
11.	Discus	sion	•	•	• •	39
Ackn	owledge	ments	•	•	• •	39
Appe	ndix .		•	•	• •	40
Refe	rences		•		• •	48

PAGE

FIGURE CAPTIONS

Figure l.	Test pattern NBS-3 fabricated with the BASE (B), EMITTER (E), CONTACT (C), and METAL (M) masks. The length of the pattern along one side is 200 mil (5.08 mm)	5
Figure 2.	An illustration of the notation used in the cross sec- tional view of a test structure. The distance between grid lines is 0.50 mil (l2.7 μ m). In the top view B = base, E = emitter, and C = collector	6
Figure 3.	Cross sectional view of a diffused region showing various dimensions	8
Figure 4.	Photomicrograph of the metal-to-base contact resistor, structure 3.24	13
Figure 5.	Etch-control structure where the regions within the squares were etched out so as to increase the size of the squares to the dotted lines	33
Figure 6	The surface contour of the surface profilometer structure 3.29. The vertical scale factor is 50.0 nm/division and the horizontal scale factor is approximately 10 μ m/division. The A through G substructures are described in section 8.1	38

Figure	7.	Test	pattern	NBS-3	quadrant	1	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	41
Figure	8.	Test	pattern	NBS-3	quadrant	2	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	43
Figure	9.	Test	pattern	NBS-3	quadrant	3	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	45
Figure	10.	Test	pattern	NBS-3	quadrant	4		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	47

LIST OF TABLES

Table l	. Plan	ar Test Stru	uctures	on	n Test I	Pat	te	rn	NBS	5-3		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	4
Table 2	. An n	-p-n Transis	stor Wa	fer	Fabric	cat	io	n P	roc	ces	S	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	35
Table 3	. Meas	urements on	Test P	Patt	ern NBS	5-3		•••	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	37
Table 4	. Test	. Structures	Shown	in	Figure	7	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	40
Table 5	. Test	Structures	Shown	in	Figure	8	•	•••	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	42
Table 6	. Test	. Structures	Shown	in	Figure	9	•	•••	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	44
Table 7	. Test	Structures	Shown	in	Figure	10			•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	46

PREFACE

The work was conducted as part of the Semiconductor Technology Program at the National Bureau of Standards. Portions of this work were supported by the Defense Nuclear Agency (IACRO 75-816), Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency (Order No. 2397), U.S. Navy Strategic Systems Project Office (IPR SP-75-4), and the NBS.

In the semiconductor industry it is common practice to design photomasks in English units. The photomasks used in this study were laid out in English units. The equivalent metric unit is given in parentheses; in some cases the equivalent is rounded off to an appropriate number of significant figures. MICROELECTRONIC TEST PATTERN NBS-3 FOR EVALUATING THE RESISTIVITY-DOPANT DENSITY RELATIONSHIP OF SILICON

by

Martin G. Buehler

Abstract: Test pattern NBS-3 is a microelectronic test vehicle designed by the National Bureau of Standards to evaluate the electronic materials used in discrete semiconductor devices and integrated circuits. Designed for fabrication on silicon wafers, the test pattern is an aid in better understanding integrated circuit fabrication technologies. The main pattern consists of four masks designated BASE, EMITTER, CONTACT, and METAL and contains 33 test structures such as sheet resistors, MOS capacitors, p-n junctions, bipolar and MOS transistors, and etch control and resolution structures.

The pattern was designed primarily to aid in the evaluation of the relationship between resistivity and dopant density in both *n*- and *p*-type silicon. This relation is needed in the design of silicon solid-state devices and in the analysis of various physical measurements. Other test structures are included for use as diagnostic tools to verify that proper fabrication procedures were followed. The remaining structures allow the exploration of new designs and measurement methods.

The structures are arranged in a square pattern 200 mil (5.08 mm) on a side. A detailed layout of each test structure is presented including both a top view and a cross sectional view. A description of each structure is given and where applicable the formulas for evaluating such quantities as resistivity, dopant density, and sheet resistance are given. The fabrication of the test pattern is illustrated by an n-p-n transistor process and values obtained from various test structures are presented.

Key Words: Dopant density; microelectronics; MOS capacitors; n-p-n transistor fabrication; p-n junctions; resistivity; semiconductor electronics; sheet resistors; silicon; test pattern; test structures.

1. INTRODUCTION

This test pattern follows in a series of microelectronic test patterns intended for use in the design, process control, and product assurance of discrete devices and integrated circuits. The use of these patterns by manufacturers is expected to lead to lower cost and more reliable electronic components. When fully developed, they are intended to be utilized by the buyers of microelectronic components in purchase specifications. The previous pattern, NBS-2 [1], was designed so that we could fabricate various test structures needed for the development of various measurement methods. Test pattern NBS-3 was designed primarily to evaluate the resistivity versus dopant density relation in n- and p-type silicon. Other secondary purposes include the evaluation of test structures for use as process control tools and the development of new and improved test structures. The purpose of this report is to describe the test structures found on test pattern NBS-3, to indicate the test methods associated with the dopant density and resistivity measurements, and to present selected test structure results from a wafer fabricated with an n-p-n transistor process.

ESTIS

112

Vietor

in the

10..........

::sist

sitir

ajsti

过时

itte :

4 22

22

137 21

165

1165

111

4 13

 \mathbb{Z}

The resistivity-dopant density relation for silicon is commonly taken from the experimental data of Irvin [2]. Caughey and Thomas [3] have written closed-form mathematical formulas which fit the Irvin data for both *n*- and *p*-type silicon. Recently, Wagner [4] has indicated that the *p*-type relation is in error by about 50 percent for dopant density near 10^{18} cm⁻³. NBS has undertaken to reevaluate the resistivity-dopant density relation at the request of and in conjunction with ASTM Committee F-1 on Electronics. The main test vehicles are silicon wafers on which test pattern NBS-3 is fabricated. Preliminary results of our investigation are presented elsewhere [5].

The test structures found on test pattern NBS-3 are listed in table 1. The overall pattern, shown in figure 1, is fabricated on a square silicon chip 200 mil (5.08 mm) on a side where four mask levels were used. Enlarged views of the test pattern are shown in the Appendix. Four different masks were designed and are intended to be used in the following sequence: BASE, EMITTER, CONTACT, and METAL. Provision was made in the design to allow for the incorporation of a fifth PASSIVATION mask. The BASE mask delineates regions whose conductivity type is opposite from the collector substrate, and the EMITTER mask delineates regions whose conductivity type is the same as the collector substrate.

A BASE (modified) mask was designed to address a special problem with structures 3.12, 3.17, and 3.18. These structures have small collector contacts which are formed by blocking the large-area base diffusion at the contact points. This allows the formation of a collector pipe which reaches through to the top silicon surface. In order to block the base diffusion at a contact point, a base-oxide island is formed which is a square 0.25 mil (6.4 μ m) on a side. During fabrication, the base-oxide island is over-etched by 0.10 mil (2.5 μ m) which reduces the oxide island to a square 0.15 mil (3.8 μ m) on a side. This means that the base lateral diffusion must be less than 1.9 μ m to prevent the closing off of the collector pipe. To reduce this problem, a BASE (modified) mask was designed where the 41 square base-oxide islands, found on structures 3.12, 3.17, and 3.18, were increased to 0.50 mil (12.7 μ m) on a side. When the BASE (modified) mask is used, the lateral diffusion can be as large as 5.1 μ m assuming that the base-oxide is over-etched by 0.10 mil (2.5 μ m).

The chip is composed of an array of 33 test structures such as sheet resistors, MOS capacitors, *p-n* junctions, bipolar and MOS transistors, and etch control and resolution structures which for the most part are adaptations of commonly used configurations. It should be noted that the collector Hall effect resistor (3.26) is functional only after it has been scribed from the wafer and the backside metal removed. To accommodate this structure, the scribe grid was omitted from the BASE and EMITTER masks and included on only the CONTACT mask.

Structures specifically designed for the resistivity-dopant density evaluation are indicated by asterisks in table 1. Bulk collector dopant density values can be determined from the following structures: MOS capacitor over collector (3.8), base-collector diode (3.10), and collector Hall effect resistor (3.26). In obtaining dopant density values from the MOS capacitor over collector, the high frequency C-V deep depletion method [6] provides true bulk values. The high frequency C-V C_{max}-C_{min} method [7] can give erroneous values since this method is influenced by the redistribution of impurities at the oxide-silicon interface during the oxidation process [7]. Values obtained from the collector Hall effect resistor (3.26) rely on a knowledge of the scattering factor [8], [9] which is not well established in *p*-type silicon [8]. Dopant density values can be obtained from the base-collector diode (3.10) by using the junction C-V method [10].

Bulk resistivity values can be found from the collector resistors (3.1, 3.7, 3.12, 3.17, and 3.18) and the collector Hall effect resistor (3.26). Collector

resistors (3.1, 3.7, 3.12, and 3.18) are intended to operate with current passing from the top of the chip to the backside contact. In this inde, backside contact resistance and geometrical factors must be determined. Collector resistors 3.12 and 3.18 yield information about the backside contact resistance, and collector resistor (3.7) was designed to have a really calculable geometrical factor. The collector four-probe resistor (3.17) is a conceptually simple structure, but it requires the fabrication of a bipling transistor. This device is easy to measure and provides unarbiguoun bulk resistivity values which do not depend on a knowledge of the back ide contact resistance. The collector Hall effect resistor (3.26) can yield unarbiguou into chips and the removal of the backside metallization.

Resistivity and dopant density values can be obtained continuously from base profiles by combining the results of two test structures. The base dopant density profiles can be obtained from the emitter-base diode (3.9) with use of the junction C-V, method and the base resistivity profile can be obtained from the tetrode transistor (3.6). With the use of methods described eleewhere [11], these two structures allow resistivity values to be determined over several decades in dopant density.

Many of the remaining test structures are in support of the above structures. They are intended to assure that proper fabrication steps were followed and to aid in diagnosing problems.

2. DESIGN

In designing the test structures for test pattern NBS-3 the following design rules were observed:

- 1. Minimum stripe width: 0.25 mil (6.4 µm).
- 2. Minimum base to channel stop separation: 0.50 mil (12.7 µm).
- 3. Minimum emitter to base separation: 0.50 mil (12.7 µm).
- 4. Minimum contact to base (or emitter) separation: 0.50 mil (12.7 µm).
- 5. Metal overlap at contacts: 0.25 mil (6.4 µm) [0.50 mil (12.7 µm) where a passivation layer is opened].
- 6. Minimum field plate overlap at diffusions: 0.50 mil (12.7 µm).
- 7. Minimum metal separation: 0.50 mil (12.7 µm).
- Exposed bonding pad width when a passivation layer is used: 4.00 mll (101.6 μm).
- 9. Minimum passivation overlap at metal: 0.25 mil (6.4 µm).
- 10. Scribe grid width: 4.00 mil (101.6 µm).
- 11. Expanded metallization contacts: avoided where possible by extending diffusions under contacts.
- 12. Top side contacts: provided whenever possible.
- 13. The lines on each mask level: uniquely located so that they do not coincide with the lines on another mask level.

These rules were chosen to minimize problems encountered in pinhole shorting, mask aligning, probing, bonding, and inspecting. For instance, a misalignment of \pm 0.25 mil (6.4 µm) between the CONTACT and METAL masks and between the CONTACT and BASE masks is tolerable. Eliminating expanded metal contacts reduces pinhole shorting problems associated with contacts. Unique location of lines on each mask level simplifies inspection procedures. These design rules eliminate certain fabrication faults and thereby improve the chances that a test structure will function properly.

Page Number	Section Number	Structure Number	Test Structure ^a
15	4.11	3.1	*Collector resistor (FP, CS)
23	5.4	3.2	MOS capacitor over base
24	5.5	3.3	MOS capacitor over emitter
34	8.4	3.4 N, P	Alignment markers
34	8.5	3.5	NBS logo
28	7.2	3.6	*Tetrode transistor
18	4.14	3.7	*Collector resistor (DGR)
21	5.1	3.8	*MOS capacitor over collector (FP, CS)
27	6.3	3.9	*Emitter-base diode (FP)
25	6.1	3.10	*Base-collector diode (FP, CS)
9	4.3	3.11	Base sheet resistor (VDP, FP, CS)
16	4.12	3.12	*Collector spreading resistor (small)
28	7.1	3.13	Bipolar transistor
26	6.2	3.14	Base-collector diode (FP, CS)
31	7.4	3.15	MOS transistor (circular)
30	7.3	3.16	MOS transistor
19	4.15	3.17	*Collector four-probe resistor
17	4.13	3.18	*Collector spreading resistor (large)
22	5.2	3.19	MOS capacitor over collector
12	4.7	3.20	Metal sheet resistor (VDP)
11	4.5	3.21	Emitter sheet resistor (VDP)
7	4.1	3.22	Base sheet resistor (VDP)
14	4.9	3.23	Metal-to-emitter contact resistor
13	4.8	3.24	Metal-to-base contact resistor
22	5.3	3.25	MOS capacitor over collector
20	4.16	3.26	*Collector Hall effect resistor
11	4.6	3.27	Emitter sheet resistor (B)
8	4.2	3.28	Base sheet resistor (B)
32	8.1	3.29	Surface profile structure
10	4.4	3.30	Incremental base sheet resistor (VDP)
33	8.2	3.31 B, E, C, M	Etch-control structures ^b
34	8.3	3.32 B, C, M	Resolution structures ^b
14	4.10	3.33	Metal step-coverage resistor

Table 1 - Planar Test Structures on Test Pattern NBS-3

 ${}^{a}B$ = bridge; CS = channel stop; DGR = diffused guard; FP = field plate; N = negative photoresist; P = positive photoresist; VDP = van der Pauw.

^bB = BASE mask; E = EMITTER mask; C = CONTACT mask; M = METAL mask.

*Structures designed for the resistivity-dopant density evaluation.



Figure 1. Test pattern NBS-3 fabricated with the BASE (B), EMITTER (E), CONTACT (C), and METAL (M) masks. The length of the pattern along one side is 200 mil (5.08 mm).

3. TEST STRUCTURES

In sections 4 through 8 each test structure is described along with the intended purpose. The structures are grouped in five major categories: resistors, MOS capacitors, diodes, transistors, and miscellaneous. Formulas for calculating such quantities as resistivity, dopant density, and sheet resistance are presented where applicable. The symbols used in the following text are explained at the bottom of table 1 or are indicated on the relevant test structure.

In the following sections both a detailed top view layout and cross sectional view of each test structure are given. Figure 2 illustrates the scheme used. In the top views the distance between grid lines represents 0.50 mil (12.7 µm In the cross sectional views, metal regions are black and oxide regions are dotted. Emitter regions are clear and indicated by a solid line one unit below the silicon surface. Base regions are clear and indicated by a solid line one unit line two units below the silicon surface. (In these views a *unit* is the distance between adjacent grid lines. Also the silicon surface is assumed to be flat for the sake of simplicity; the incorporation of silicon into the oxide during thermal oxidation has been ignored.)



Figure 2. An illustration of the notation used in the cross sectional view of a test structure. The distance between grid lines is 0.50 mil (12.7 μ m). In the top view B = base, E = emitter, and C = collector.

In the text the term *emitter* applies to both bipolar transistor emitter regions and to channel stop (CS) regions. The term *base* applies to both bipolar transistor base regions and to MOS transistor source-drain regions. Emitter and collector refer to regions with the same conductivity type which is opposite from the conductivity of base regions. The emitter is more heavily doped than the collector.

4. RESISTORS

4.1. Base Sheet Resistor (VDP), Structure 3.22

Base sheet resistor (VDP), structure 3.22, is a four-terminal resistor arranged in an orthogonal van der Pauw (VDP) configuration [12] and consists of a base diffused into the collector. As indicated below the active base region is a square whose side, S, is 1.50 mil (38.1 μ m) which is typical of integrated circuit device geometries. The sheet resistance, R_S(VDP), is calculated from

$$R_{S}(VDP) = (V/I) (\pi/ln2)$$
(1)

where the potential, V, is V_1-V_2 for a current, I, passed into I_1 and out of I_2 .



4.2. Base Sheet Resistor (B), Structure 3.28

Base sheet resistor (B), structure 3.28, is a four-terminal resistor arranged in a bridge (B) configuration and consists of a base diffused into the collec tor. This structure was designed according to ASTM standard F 76 [13]. The photomask dimension for the oxide window width, W(mask), is 1.50 mil (38.1 μ m and the length, L(mask), between voltage taps is 6.0 mil (152 μ m). The sheet resistance, R_S, is calculated from

$$R_{S} = (V/I) [W_{\rho}/L(mask)]$$
⁽²⁾

where the potential, V, is V_1-V_2 for a current, I, passed into I₁ and out of I₂. The effective window width, W_e , is

$$W_{e} = W(mask) + \alpha X_{i} + W_{oe}$$
(3)

(4)

where X_j is the junction depth, α is a coefficient which accounts for lateral diffusion effects [14], W_{Oe} is the over-etch width. These quantities are illustrated in figure 3. Combination of the I/V ratio measured from this



Figure 3. Cross sectional view of a diffused region showing various dimensions.

structure with the sheet resistance R_s (VDP) measured from structure 3.22 leads to an equation for the effective base window width, W_e , [15]:

 $W_{\Theta} = R_{S}(VDP)L(mask)(I/V).$



Base sheet resistor (VDP, FP, CS), structure 3.11, is a four-terminal resistor arranged in a van der Pauw (VDP) configuration [12] and consists of a base diffused into the collector. An emitter is diffused around the base and acts as a channel stop (CS). A metal field plate (FP) lies on top of the collector oxide between the base and channel stop and serves to shut off surface currents when it is biased so as to accumulate the collector. The active region is a circle 17.0 mil (432 μ m) in diameter. The sheet resistance, R_S, is calculated from

$$R_{S} = (V/I) (\pi/ln2)$$
(5)

where the potential, V, is V_1-V_2 for a current, I, passed into I_1 and out of I_2 . This structure is useful when evaluating sheet resistances greater than 1000 $\Omega/[]$.



4.4. Incremental Base Sheet Resistor (VDP), Structure 3.30

Incremental base sheet resistor (VDP) structure 3.30, is a four-terminal resistor arranged in a van der Pauw (VDP) configuration [12] and consists of a base diffused into the collector. The active region is 30.0 mil (762 μ m) in diameter. The sheet resistance, R_s, is calculated from

$$R_{s} = (V/I) (\pi/ln2)$$
(6)

where the potential, V, and the current, I, are measured at the ends of the four legs. This structure was designed to facilitate the measurement of dopant profiles by the incremental sheet resistance method [16]. The resistivity, ρ_i , of the increment is

$$\rho_{i}^{-1} = \Delta R_{s}^{-1} / \Delta X \tag{7}$$

where ΔX is the thickness of the increment and ΔR_S is the sheet resistance of the increment. This method requires a method for determining ΔX and, in order to obtain dopant density values, requires a knowledge of the resistivity dopant density relation. An apparatus for automating this measurement is described elsewhere [17].



Emitter sheet resistor (VDP), structure 3.21, is a four-terminal resistor arranged in an orthogonal van der Pauw (VDP) configuration [12] and consists of an emitter diffused into a base. The discussion for structure 3.22, section 4.1, is applicable to structure 3.21.



4.6 Emitter Sheet Resistor (B), Structure 3.27

Emitter sheet resistor (B), structure 3.27, is a four-terminal resistor arranged in a bridge (B) configuration and consists of an emitter diffused into a base. The discussion for structure 3.28, section 4.2, is applicable to structure 3.27.



4.7. Metal Sheet Resistor (VDP), Structure 3.20

Metal sheet resistor (VDP), structure 3.20, is a four-terminal resistor arranged in a van der Pauw (VDP) configuration [12] and consists of metal deposited over the collector oxide. The discussion for structure 3.22, section 4.1, is applicable to structure 3.20. The arms on this structure have a width of 0.25 mil (6.4 μ m) which requires tight control of the metal etch step to prevent the arms from being etched away.



4.8. Metal-to-Base Contact Resistor, Structure 3.24

Metal-to-base contact resistor, structure 3.24, is a four-terminal resistor which consists of a base diffused into the collector and metal which touches the base at a square window 1.00 mil (25.4 μ m) on a side; see figure 4. The effective contact resistance for a unit area, R_c, as given by this structure is calculated from

$$R_{\rm C} = AV/I \tag{8}$$

where the potential, V, is V_1-V_2 for a current, I, passed into I_1 and out of I_2 and A is the area of the contact. For a square contact window of 1.00 mil (25.4 µm) on a side, $A = 6.45 \times 10^{-6}$ cm⁻². This structure is intended to serve as a process control monitor. It is not intended to yield absolute values for the specific contact resistance for the effective contact resistance determined by this structure is influenced by over-etch of the contact carries a significant current [18]. Over-etch of a contact window occurs because the contact window is etched at the same time as the scribe lines. Etching the scribe lines requires removal of the collector oxide which is thicker than the base oxide.





Figure 4. Photomicrograph of the metal-to-base contact resistor, structure 3.24.

4.9. Metal-to-Emitter Contact Resistor, Structure 3.23

Metal-to-emitter contact resistor, structure 3.23, is a four-terminal resistor which consists of an emitter diffused into a base and metal which touches the emitter at a square window 1.00 mil (25.4 μ m) on a side. The discussion for structure 3.24, section 4.8, is applicable to structure 3.23.



4.10 Metal Step-Coverage Resistor, Structure 3.33

Metal step-coverage resistor, structure 3.33, is a two-terminal resistor which consists of a serpentine metal path 0.50 mil (12.7 μ m) wide which crosses 18 oxide steps etched by the CONTACT mask. Two resistors are combined into one structure. In one resistor the serpentine path crosses the oxide steps in a direction perpendicular to the other resistor. This allows a check of shadowing effects during metal deposition. This structure is used to check for metal continuity [19]. As shown below, the left-hand resistor is 31 squares long and the right-hand resistor is 35 squares long.

ا د سناس او این او د مدر مدیر می تواند و بر و د مدیر مدیر می و و و این او و و از ماه و و و و و و و و و و و <u>او</u>

Collector resistor (FP, CS), structure 3.1, is a three-terminal resistor which consists of an emitter diffused into the collector. A metal field plate (FP) over the collector oxide controls the surface currents between the emitter and the channel stop (CS). The resistance is determined from the voltage drop between E_1 and the backside for a current between E_2 and the backside. In operation the field plate is biased so as to invert the collector surface. The collector resistivity is calculated with use of an expression which appropriately models the peripheral spreading resistance. Various expressions are available [20], [21]. This structure is intended for use on epitaxial layers deposited on more heavily doped substrates of the same conductivity type. The thickness of the layers must be small compared to the width of the field plate, 4.0 mil (102 μ m), so that the peripheral current spreading is easily modeled. Since the backside contact resistance is in series with the collector, it must be negligibly small compared with the collector resistance in order to determine the collector resistivity accurately.



4.12. Collector Spreading Resistor (Small), Structure 3.12

Collector spreading resistor (small), structure 3.12, is a three-terminal resistor which consists of an emitter diffused into the collector. The emitter is surrounded by a base diffusion which eliminates surface currents. The base diffusion is broken at a series of points which serve as voltage taps to monitor the potential drop as a function of distance from the emitter. The drop in voltage with distance from the emitter is a sensitive monitor of the backside contact resistance. A linear model for this voltage drop is given by Bilotti [22] for the case of no contact resistance. In the absence of backside contact resistance the collector resistivity is calculated with the use of an expression which appropriately models the peripheral spreading currents. Various expressions are available [20], [21].





4.13. Collector Spreading Resistor (Large), Structure 3.18

Collector spreading resistor (large), structure 3.18, is a three-terminal resistor. Its design is similar to that of structure 3.12, section 4.12.

4.14. Collector Resistor (DGR), Structure 3.7

Collector resistor (DGR), structure 3.7, is a three-terminal resistor which consists of two emitters diffused into the collector. The collector resistivity and backside contact resistance are calculated from measurements which require perpendicular current flow beneath the center emitter and the backside. (This current is introduced at E₂.) Perpendicular current flow is established by adjusting the current through the peripheral emitter E₃, a diffused guard ring (DGR), and the backside so that the voltage difference between E₃ and E₂ is zero. If the backside contact resistance is negligible, the collector resistivity, ρ , is calculated from

$$\rho = (V/I) (A/X_{\dagger})$$
(9)

where V is the voltage difference between E_1 and the backside, I is the curren into E_2 , X_t is the thickness of the silicon between the emitter and the backside of the wafer, and A is the effective area of the center emitter. From the theory of the guarded capacitor [23] a good estimate for A is obtained by using the geometrical mean of the inner and outer radii of the gap between the center emitter and peripheral emitter. If the collector resistivity, ρ , is known from an independent measurement (e.g., structure 3.17), then the backside contact resistance, R_c , is calculated from

$$R_{\rm c} = R_{\rm m} - \rho X_{\rm t} / A \tag{10}$$

where R_m is the measured resistance given by V/I as explained above.

In this measurement the center emitter must be an equipotential surface. This is achieved by heavily doping the emitter and by using thick metal. The place ment of probes and the use of multiple probes to contact the same metal areas are important in achieving an equipotential surface.



4.15. Collector Four-Probe Resistor, Structure 3.17

Collector four-probe resistor, structure 3.17, is a four-terminal resistor with four point contacts arranged in a square array. It is intended for the evaluation of the collector resistivity. This structure is fabricated by diffusing a base over a large area except at the four point contacts which are protected from the base diffusion by four base-oxide islands. Emitters are diffused at these points in order to make low resistance contact to the collector material. The purpose of the base diffusion is to eliminate surface currents. The collector resistivity, ρ , is calculated from [24]

$$\rho = (V/I) (2\pi s) / (2 - \sqrt{2})$$
(11)

where the potential, V, is V_1-V_2 for a current, I, passed into I_1 and out of I_2 and s is the probe spacing. The spacing is taken as the center-to-center distance of 2.25 mil (57.2 µm). The above formula assumes that the thickness of the silicon wafer is large compared to the probe spacing and that the shorting effect of the backside metallization is negligible. For a wafer thickness, X_t , greater than or equal to 9.0 mil (229 µm), where $X_t/s \ge 4$, the correct resistivity when the backside is metallized is less than 0.6 percent larger than the measured resistivity. When the backside is not metallized the correct resistivity for $X_t/s \ge 4$ is less than 0.8 percent smaller than the measured resistivity value calculated from the above formula does not depend on the backside contact resistance which does affect structures 3.1, 3.7, 3.12, and 3.18. The proper fabrication of structure 3.17 depends on the fabrication of a bipolar transistor with finite gain. This insures that the emitter has not been punched through the base and consequently that the current passes into the collector through a narrow channel.

A BASE (modified) mask was designed with oversize base-oxide islands which are squares 0.50 mil (12.7 μ m) on a side. The details of this mask were discussed in the Introduction. As shown below the base-oxide islands are squares 0.25 mil (6.4 μ m) on a side.



4.16. Collector Hall Effect Resistor, Structure 3.26

Collector Hall effect resistor, structure 3.26, is a four-terminal resistor formed when this test pattern, fabricated on a silicon wafer, is scribed into a square chip 100 mil (2.54 mm) on a side. The backside metal must be removed for this structure to operate properly. Scribe lines were purposefully omitted from the BASE and EMITTER masks to prevent doping the periphery of this structure. Contacts are formed in the four corners by an emitter diffused in a square 4.5 mil (114 μ m) on a side. (This is the net size of the emitter contacts after the wafer is scribed into chips where the chip has separated in the middle of the scribe line.) For this case the ratio of the length of the contact to the length of the chip is 0.045. For this ratio the correction factor for the Hall coefficient is less than 2 percent and the correction factor for the resistivity is much less than 1 percent [26]. The resistivity, ρ , is calculated from [12]

$$\rho = (V_0/I) (\pi X_t / \ln 2)$$
(12)

where X_t is the wafer thickness, V_{ρ} is the voltage difference measured between nearest neighbor contacts for a current, I, passed between the remaining two contacts. The Hall coefficient, R_H , is calculated from [12]

$$R_{\rm H} = (V_{\rm H}X_{\rm +})/({\rm BI})$$
 (13)

where $V_{\rm H}$ is the voltage difference measured between opposite contacts for a current, I, passed between the remaining two contacts and B is the magnetic field density perpendicular to the plane of the chip. The collector dopant density, N, is calculated from

$$N = r/[q|R_{\rm H}|] \tag{14}$$

where q is the electronic charge and r is the scattering factor [8], [9]. The recommended measurement procedures for these measurements are described elsewhere [13].



5. MOS CAPACITORS

5.1. MOS Capacitor Over Collector (FP, CS), Structure 3.8

MOS capacitor over collector (FP, CS), structure 3.8, consists of a main gate, G₁, 15.0 mil (381 μ m) in diameter which is surrounded by a field plate (FP), G₂ that overlaps a channel stop (CS) which also serves as a topside collector, C, contact. The collector dopant density, N, is calculated from the high frequency C-V Cmax-Cmin method [7] by using the transcendental relation:

$$\frac{C_{o}}{C_{i}} = 1 + \frac{C_{o}}{A} \frac{\left\lceil \frac{4kT}{\epsilon_{s}q^{2}N} \right| \ln \left\lceil \frac{N}{n_{i}} \right\rceil^{-1/2}}{\left\lceil \frac{N}{n_{i}} \right\rceil^{-1/2}}$$
(15)

where C_0 is the maximum (oxide) capacitance, C_1 is the minimum (inversion) capacitance, A is the main gate area, k is the Boltzmann constant, T is temperature, ε_S is the silicon dielectric constant, q is the electronic charge, and n_i is the intrinsic carrier concentration. The value for N calculated from this method is a surface value which may be different from the bulk value due to dopant redistribution during oxidation [7].

To determine the bulk collector value a dopant profile is obtained by use of the high frequency C-V deep depletion method [6] where the collector dopant density, $N_i(W)$, in an incremental region is calculated from

$$N_{i}(W) = (2/q\epsilon_{S}A^{2}) [\Delta V/\Delta (C^{-2})]$$
(16)

where ΔV is an incremental change in the gate voltage. The measured MOS capacitance, C, is

$$C^{-1} = C_0^{-1} + C_s^{-1}$$
(17)

where $C_{\rm S}$ is the semiconductor capacitance. The depth, W, from the oxidesilicon interface to the edge of the depletion region is

$$W = \varepsilon_{\rm S} A / C_{\rm S} \,. \tag{18}$$



MOS capacitor over collector, structure 3.19, consists of a circular main gate 15.0 mil (381 μ m) in diameter without a peripheral field plate. This structure is useful in evaluating charge spreading (ion migration) phenomena [27].



5.3. MOS Capacitor Over Collector, Structure 3.25

MOS capacitor over collector, structure 3.25, consists of a small square main gate 4.0 mil (102 $\mu\text{m})$ on a side without a peripheral field plate. This structure is useful in evaluating measurement limitations due to small gate areas.



5.4. MOS Capacitor Over Base, Structure 3.2

MOS capacitor over base, structure 3.2, consists of a metal gate, G, 15.0 mil (381 µm) in diameter on top of an oxide layer over a diffused base, B. A diffused emitter surrounds the base and serves as a topside collector, C, contact. This structure is used to evaluate the base surface dopant density by the methods described in section 5.1 for structure 3.8. This structure is also useful as a base-oxide pinhole test. It can also be used for basecollector diode C-V measurements; however, the junction area calculation is somewhat complicated by the fact that the junction is not circular.



5.5. MOS Capacitor Over Emitter, Structure 3.3

MOS capacitor over emitter, structure 3.3, consists of a metal gate, G, 15.0 mil (381 μ m) in diameter on top of an oxide grown over a diffused emitter, E. Topside contact is provided to both the emitter and base. A diffused emitter surrounds the base and serves as a topside collector, C, contact. This structure is used to evaluate the emitter surface dopant density by the methods described in section 5.1 for structure 3.8. This structure is also useful as an emitter oxide pinhole test and as a bipolar transistor.



6. DIODES

6.1. Base-Collector Diode (FP, CS), Structure 3.10

Base-collector diode (FP, CS), structure 3.10, consists of a base 17.0 mil (432 μ m) in diameter diffused into a collector and a metal field plate (FP), G, to control the periphery. The field plate overlaps both the base and a diffused emitter channel stop (CS) which also serves as a topside collector, C, contact. The collector dopant density, N_i(W), in an incremental region is calculated from the Schottky equation:

$$N_{i}(W) = (2/q\varepsilon_{S}A^{2})[\Delta V/\Delta(C^{-2})]$$
(19)

where ΔV is an incremental change in the applied voltage, C is the junction capacitance, q is the electronic charge, ε_s is the dielectric constant of silicon, and A is the area of the base. The effective depth, W, is taken, in the simplest case of a one-side junction, as

$$W = \varepsilon_{\rm S} A/C. \tag{20}$$

For junctions found in practice, peripheral capacitance and diffused layer effects may be taken into account by a model and computer program detailed elsewhere [28]. To obtain a correct profile the field plate must be biased at the flat-band potential [5].



6.2. Base-Collector Diode (FP, CS), Structure 3.14

Base-collector diode (FP, CS), structure 3.14, consists of a base 5 mil (127 μ m) in diameter diffused into a collector. This structure is a miniature version of structure 3.10 described in section 6.1 The metal field plate (FP), G, has a metallized contact which extends over the collector. The field plate controls the periphery of the junction and extends from the base to the diffused emitter channel stop (CS) which serves as a topside collector, C, contact. The base is large enough so that its metallization is confined within the base diffusion. This allows precise measurement of the junction capacitance needed in the computation of dopant density values.



6.3. Emitter-Base Diode (FP), Structure 3.9

Emitter-base diode (FP), structure 3.9, consists of an emitter 17.0 mil (432 μ m) in diameter diffused into a base and a field plate, G, to control the periphery of the emitter. This structure is intended to be used to obtain base dopant profiles by the method described in section 6.1 for structure 3.10. The use of this method for obtaining base dopant profiles should be approached with caution in the light of recently published work [29].



7.1. Bipolar Transistor, Structure 3.13

Bipolar transistor, structure 3.13, consists of a square emitter, E, 5.5 mil (140 μ m) on a side diffused into a base, B, and an emitter diffused into a collector to provide topside collector, C, contact. This vertical transistor is intended to verify that the emitter and base diffusions have formed a transistor structure with finite gain. This is one of the requirements needed to insure the proper fabrication of the collector four-probe resistor, structure 3.17, described in section 4.15.



7.2. Tetrode Transistor, Structure 3.6

Tetrode transistor, structure 3.6, consists of a donut shaped emitter [30] with an inside diameter of $D_1 = 6.0 \text{ mil} (152 \ \mu\text{m})$ and an outside diameter of $D_2 = 17.0 \text{ mil} (432 \ \mu\text{m})$ diffused into a circular base 23.5 mil (597 \ \mu\text{m}) in diameter. This structure is intended to be used to obtain the sheet resistance, R_5 , of the base-under-emitter which can be calculated from

$$R_{S} = (V/I) [2\pi/ln (D_{2}/D_{1})]$$
(21)

where V is the potential drop between the center, B_1 , and outer, B_2 , base contacts for a current, I, passed between these contacts. This structure is a two-terminal resistor, but interference due to the contact resistance is negligible because the contact resistance is usually much smaller than the sheet resistance.

The incremental resistivity can also be measured in a narrow region of the base by adjusting the width of the base region which is conducting current. This is accomplished by changing the bias across the emitter-base junction which varies the width of the emitter-base depletion region. The base resistivity, ρ_i (W), in an incremental region is calculated from

$$\rho_{\perp}(W) = \frac{2\varepsilon_{\rm S}\pi A}{\ln(D_{\rm Z}/D_{\rm I})} \frac{\Delta(C^{-1})}{\Delta(R^{-1})}$$
(22)

where ε_s is the dielectric constant of silicon, R = V/I, A is the area of the emitter-base junction, and C is the capacitance of the emitter-base junction. This expression is similar to those derived by others [11]. The incremental region is located at a distance W from a one-sided junction.

This distance, W, is given by

$$W = \varepsilon_{S} A/C.$$
(23)

The base dopant density, $\mathtt{N}_{\texttt{i}}\left(\mathtt{W}\right),$ for the incremental region located at W is given by

$$N_{i}(W) = (2/q\epsilon_{c}A^{2})(\Delta V/\Delta C^{-2})$$
(24)

where ΔV is the change in the voltage across the emitter-base junction. The above equations for $\rho_{i}(W)$ and $N_{i}(W)$ yield a variety of values for the resistivity versus dopant density relation. These relations for $\rho_{i}(W)$ and $N_{i}(W)$ may be combined to yield mobility profiles, $\mu_{i}(W)$, through the base as given by

$$\mu_{i}(W) = 1/q\rho_{i}N_{i} \tag{25}$$

where q is the electronic charge. Due to increased crystalline dislocations and other impurity scattering centers in base regions, the mobilities measured here are expected to be lower than in bulk silicon.



MOS transistor, structure 3.16, consists of base diffusions which serve as a source, S, and drain, D. The gate, G, has a photomask W/L ratio of 4 where L = 0.50 mil (12.7 μ m). This structure is intended to simulate the electrical characteristics of a typical integrated circuit device.



7.4. MOS Transistor, Structure 3.15

MOS transistor (circular), structure 3.15, consists of base diffusions which serve as source, S_1 and S_2 , and drain, D_1 and D_2 , and a gate, G. This structure, being circular, has an edgeless gate region which simplifies the geometrical calculation associated with the current flow. The effective photomask W/L ratio is $2\pi/ln(R_2/R_1)$ where the inside radius of the drain, R_2 , is 12 mil (305 µm) and the radius of the source, R_1 , is 8.5 mil (216 µm), so that W/L = 18.22. The source and drain regions have dual metal contacts that allow four-terminal measurements of the inversion region channel mobility. From the measurement of the low voltage transconductance, $G_0 = I_{\rm DS}/V_{\rm DS}$, as a function of gate voltage, $V_{\rm GS}$, the channel mobility, µ, can be calculated from [31]

$$\mu = (X_{OC} L / \varepsilon_{O} W) (\Delta G_{O} / \Delta V_{GS})$$
(26)

where ΔV_{GS} is the incremental change in the gate to source voltage, X_{OC} is the collector oxide thickness and ε_O is the oxide dielectric constant. The gate oxide thickness may be determined from structure 3.29, section 8.1, or from structure 3.8, section 5.1, using $X_{OC} = \varepsilon_O A/C_O$.



8. MISCELLANEOUS

8.1. Surface Profilometer Structure, Structure 3.29

Surface profilometer structure, structure 3.29, consists of a region where a mechanical stylus-type profilometer is used to evaluate various regions for process control and diagnostic purposes. The cross sectional drawing of this structure as shown below is a schematic view, for the silicon surface is shown flat. In fact the silicon surface does vary due to the incorporation of silicon into the oxide during various oxidation steps. (This is illustrated by the profile shown on page 38.) The surface contour over the base oxide is obtained from (A) and over the emitter oxide is obtained from The surface contour of the silicon surface over collector, base, and (B). emitter are obtained from (C). The thickness of various layers is determined from (D): X_{OP} is the oxide thickness over the emitter, X_{OP} is the oxide thickness over the base, Xoc is the oxide thickness over the collector, and X_m is the metal thickness. For diagnosing the smallest geometry structure, 3.17, the critical portion of this structure is elongated in one direction as seen in (E) and (F). In (E) the oxide is removed and in (F) the metal is removed. A metal resolution pattern is seen in (G). Between each structure a metal marker is provided for easy identification of structures.



Etch-control structures, structures 3.31 B, E, C, M, consist of squares offset by multiples of 0, 1, and 2 times 0.25 mil (6.4 μ m). The layout of the BASE, EMITTER, and CONTACT oxide etch structures is identical; for these structures over-etch causes the squares to increase in size. This effect is illustrated in figure 5.



Figure 5. Etch-control structure where the regions within the squares were etched out so as to increase the size of the squares to the dotted lines.

The layout of the METAL etch structure is different, for over-etch causes these squares to decrease in size. The alignment of the sides of adjacent squares indicates that the over-etch is between 0 and 0.125 mil (3.2 μ m) or between 0.125 mil (3.2 μ m) and 0.25 mil (6.4 μ m) or greater than 0.25 mil (6.4 μ m). As illustrated in figure 5, the amount of over-etch is 0.125 mil (3.2 μ m). These patterns provide a rapid visual indication of over-etch problems, since the amount of over-etch is easily determined.



Resolution structures, structures 3.32 B, C, M, consist of offset rectangles which are spaced in multiples of 1, 2, 3, and 4 times 0.25 mil (6.4 μ m). This pattern is found on the BASE, CONTACT, and METAL masks and indicates the quality of the photolithographic and etching processes.



8.4. Alignment Markers, Structures 3.4 N, P

Alignment markers, structures 3.4 N, P, consist of concentric squares whose sides differ by 0.5 mil (13 μ m). Two markers are present; one for use with positive photoresist, indicated by a P, and another for use with negative photoresist, indicated by an N.



8.5. NBS Logo, Structure 3.5

NBS logo, structure 3.5, consists of the symbols NBS formed in the metalization.



9. AN *n-p-n* TRANSISTOR FABRICATION PROCESS

Recall that the main objective of this test pattern is to evaluate the resistivity-dopant density relation in n- and p-type bulk silicon over the dopant density range from less than 10^{14} to above 10^{20} cm⁻³. To accomplish this task an n-p-n transistor process and a p-n-p transistor process were developed. To illustrate the use of this pattern the n-p-n transistor process is described.

The fabrication process is outlined in table 2 which indicates the steps in the fabrication of an *n-p-n* transistor in a bulk, (111) oriented, nominally 10 $\Omega \cdot cm$, *n*-type silicon wafer. Target values are shown for the sheet resistance, $R_S(\Omega/!)$, the junction depth, $X_j(\mu m)$, and the layer thickness, X(nm). In the fabrication process four photomasks were used: BASE (modified), EMITTER, CONTACT, and METAL. The wafer is also metallized on the backside to reduce the backside contact resistance. The cleanup steps involve an ammonium hydroxide-peroxide mixture followed by a hydrochloric acid-peroxide mixture [32]. The flow rate for steps 2, 5, 6, 9, 14 and 26 is 500 cm³/min. The flow rates for step 12 are 3265 cm³/min of N₂, 35 cm³/min of O₂, and 200 cm³/min of PH₃.

	Table 2	2 -	An	n-p-n	Transistor	Wafer	Fabrication	Process
--	---------	-----	----	-------	------------	-------	-------------	---------

	Process Step	T, °C	Ambient	t, min	Rs, Xj, X, Ω/], μm, nm
1.	Cleanup (ultrasonic) Oxidation (25 ml H.O)	1100	0.(W) 0. N.	20 20 20	350
3.	BASE photoresist	1100	$0_2(w), 0_2, w_2$	2.5	-, -, 550
4.	Cleanup				
5.	BN preparation (A-type)	965	N ₂	30	
6.	Boron deposition	965	N ₂	25	50, - , -
/.	Deglaze (10% HF)			0.5	
8. 0	Rinse (DI; spin ary under N_2) Drive in diffusion (25 ml H O)	1100	0 (H) 0. N.	20 /0 20	200 2 360
10	FMITTER photoresist	1100	$0_2(W), 0_2, W_2$	20, 40, 20	200, 2, 300
11.	Cleanup			Ŭ	
12.	Phosphorus diffusion (PH_3)	1000	$N_2 O_2 PH_3$	20	
13.	Deglaze (10% HF)			0.2	
14.	Oxidation (steam)	925	$O_2(W), O_2, N_2$	30, 5, 10	10, 1, 220
15.	Clospup			3	
17	Tonside Al evanoration (F-gun)				800
18.	METAL photoresist				-, -, 000
19.	Wax wafer face down				
20.	Backside oxide removal				
~ 1	(1:1 DI:HF)			0.75	
21.	Rinse (DI; spin dry under N_2)				
22.	Backside sillcon removal (LP-6)				
24	Rackside Au evaporation (filament)				
	0.6% Sb doped Au				- , - , 200
25.	Dewax (TCE, acetone cobaltous				
	nitrate, DI)				
26.	Microalloy	500	N ₂	30	

W = wet. CP-6 = 5:4.5:3 parts of HNO₃:Acetone Acid:HF. TCE = trichloroethylene. DI = deionized water.

In this section, test results obtained from various test structures are presented for the n-p-n transistor fabrication process described in the previous section. These measured values are intended to indicate the kind of information obtainable from this test pattern. More detailed measurements on some of the structures are presented elsewhere [5].

All electrical measurements were made in the dark at room temperature. The measured values, listed in table 3, represent the mean and one sample standard deviation of five measurements taken on a two-inch (5 cm) diameter silicon wafer. The measurements were taken at sites located at the top, bottom, left, middle, and right positions on the wafer where the distance between sites was 600 mil (15 mm). The measured values were calculated by using the formulas presented in sections 4 through 8.

The resistor test structures were measured by forcing a current in opposite directions through the structure and averaging the resulting voltages. For the van der Pauw and four-probe resistor structures, additional voltages were measured by shifting the voltage and current points to the next adjacent point. These voltages were then averaged with the first voltages.

As seen in table 3 the base sheet resistance values measured by use of the van der Pauw structures 3.11, 3.28, and 3.30 are close to 190 $\Omega/[]$. This verifies that the van der Pauw sheet resistance values are not dependent on the geometry of the structure. The base sheet resistance value measured by use of the bridge structure 3.28 is 173 $\Omega/[]$ which is lower than the van der Pauw values because a W $_{
m e}$ of 1.50 mil (38.1 μ m) was used in the bridge sheet resistance calculation. As calculated from equation (4), the effective width, W_{e} , of the base bridge structure is 1.64 mil (41.7 μ m) due to the over-etch of the oxide window and lateral base diffusion. Similar remarks hold for the emitter sheet resistance where the van der Pauw value of 10.7 $\Omega/[]$ is higher than the bridge value of 9.8 $\Omega/[]$. The effective width, We, of the emitter bridge structure is 1.57 mil (39.9 μ m). The emitter-oxide window was over-etched by $W_{Oe} = 0.06$ mil (1.5 μ m). The combination of measurements from the bridge and van der Pauw sheet resistance structures provides a rapid means for determining the width of oxide windows. Measurements on the orthogonal van der Pauw structures 3.20, 3.21, and 3.22 demonstrate that this structure is capable of evaluating sheet resistances which vary from 0.03 $\Omega/[]$ for the metallization to 190 Ω/\Box for the base. The metal-to-base contact resistance of 1.5 $\mu\Omega \cdot cm^2$ is larger than the metal-to-emitter contact resistance of 0.18 $\mu\Omega \cdot cm^2$. The contact resistance values are intended as a qualitative check on the process, for they are influenced by many factors including the contact window area and the sheet resistance of the diffused layer. The step coverage resistance is an average of the resistances measured on the two resistors. Four-probe resistor measurements indicate that the *n*-type collector substrate resistivity is 11.2 Ω cm; a probe spacing of 2.25 mil (57.2 μ m) was used in the calculation. To validate these results the gain of the bipolar transistor, structure 3.13, was measured. A gain of 80 indicates that the emitter is not shorted to the collector.

Capacitance-voltage measurements were made on a variety of structures and various dopant densities were determined. The capacitances were measured at 1 MHz with the use of a 15 mV rms signal. The MOS capacitor over the collector (3.8) was measured by two methods. The dopant density, 4.7×10^{14} cm⁻³ determined from the $C_{max}-C_{min}$ method is higher than the 4.3×10^{14} cm⁻³ value calculated from the deep-depletion method. The difference in these values is due to the region sampled by the two methods. The $C_{max}-C_{min}$ method samples the dopant density near the oxide-silicon interface where phosphorus is piled up during the oxidation steps; the deep-depletion method samples the true collector substrate dopant density. Other MOS capacitor values are listed. The dopant density value determined from the small MOS capacitor, consisting of a square 4 mil (102 µm) on a side, is larger than values measured on the larger capacitors because the area and peripheral capacitance corrections

Test Structure	Equation	Conditions	Quantity Measured	Measured Value	Units
DP R, 3.22	(1)	I = 0.3 mA	Base R _s	189 <u>+</u> 4	Ω/□
DP R, 3.11	(5)	I = 0.3 mA	Base R _s	189 <u>+</u> 5	Ω/□
DP R, 3.30	(6)	I = 0.3 mA	Base R _s	190 <u>+</u> 5	Ω/□
ridge R, 3.28	(2)	I = 0.2 mA, $L/W_e = 4$	Base R _s	173 <u>+</u> 4	Ω/□
DP R, 3.21	(1)	I = 10 mA	Emitter R _s	10.7 + 0.5	Ω /]
ridge R, 3.27	(2)	$I = 0.5 \text{ mA}, L/W_e = 4$	Emitter R _s	9.8 <u>+</u> 0.5	Ω /]
DP R, 3.20	(1)	I = 100 mA	Metal R _s	0.0336 + 0.0006	Ω/[]
etrode T, 3.6	(21)	I = 0.04 mA	Base-under-emitter R _s	3400 <u>+</u> 160	Ω/[]
.22, 3.28	(4)	L(mask) = 6 mil	Base W _e	1.64 <u>+</u> 0.01	mil
.22, 3.28	(3)	$\alpha = 0.3$	Base W _{oe}	0.12 <u>+</u> 0.01	mil
.21, 3.27	(4)	L(mask) = 6 mil	Emitter W _e	1.57 <u>+</u> 0.01	mil
.21, 3.27	(3)	$\alpha = 0.3$	Emitter W _{oe}	0.06 <u>+</u> 0.01	mil
ontact R, 3.24	(8)	$I = 50 \text{ mA}, \text{ A} = 1 \text{ mi} 1^2$	Metal-to-base R _c	1.45 <u>+</u> 0.05	μΩ• cm ²
ontact R, 3.23	(8)	$I = 50 \text{ mA}, \text{ A} = 1 \text{ mi}1^2$	Metal-to-emitter R _c	0.177 + 0.005	μΩ• cm ²
etal R, 3.33	-	I = 8 mA	Metal step coverage R	1.61 <u>+</u> 0.02	Ω
-Probe R, 3.17	(11)	I = 0.070 mA	Collector p	11.2 <u>+</u> 0.5	Ω•CM
ransistor, 3.13	-		Common emitter gain	80 + 10	-
OS C, 3.8	(15)	C _{max} -C _{min}	Collector N	$4.69 \pm 0.29 \times 10^{14}$	cm ⁻³
DS C, 3.8	(16)	Deep depletion	Collector N	4.35 \pm 0.18 \times 10 ¹⁴	cm-3
DS C, 3.19	(16)	Deep depletion	Collector N	$4.43 \pm 0.17 \times 10^{14}$	cm ⁻³
DS C, 3.25	(15)	C _{max} -C _{min}	Collector N	5.62 \pm 0.38 \times 10 ¹⁴	cm ⁻³
DS C, 3.2	(16)	Deep depletion	Base N	$2.41 \pm 0.4 \times 10^{18}$	cm ⁻³
iode, 3.10	(19)		Collector N	4.36 \pm 0.25 \times 10 ¹⁴	cm ⁻³
iode, 3.14	(19)		Collector N	$1.26 \pm 0.72 \times 10^{15}$	cm ⁻³
rofile, 3.29			Emitter oxide X _{oe}	260 <u>+</u> 10	nm
rofile, 3.29			Base oxide X _{ob}	360 <u>+</u> 10	nm
rofile, 3.29			Collector oxide X _{oc}	420 <u>+</u> 10	nm
rofile, 3.29			Metal X _m	770 <u>+</u> 10	nm
-			Emitter X _{je}	1.23 <u>+</u> 0.05	μM
-			Base X _{jb}	2.00 + 0.05	μm
-			Base width X _{jbe}	0.90 ± 0.05	μm
-			Wafer X _t	10.6 ± 0.1	mil

Table 3 - Measurements on Test Pattern NBS-3*

Mafer 44. L(mask) = 6.0 mil (152 μ m). A = 1 mil² = 6.5 × 10⁻⁶ cm². The symbol N refers to the dopant density not the conductivity type.

0

were not taken into account. The base surface dopant density, 2.4×10^{18} cm⁻³ was determined from the MOS capacitor over the base. Dopant density values were calculated from capacitance-voltage measurements taken on diodes 3.10 and 3.14. Equation (19) was used to evaluate the C-V data which were not corrected for peripheral capacitance or diffused layer effects. These effects have a minimal effect on the dopant density value derived from the large diode 3.10; this dopant density agrees with values obtained from the MOS capacitors. The dopant density value derived from the small diode 3.14 is too high because the peripheral capacitance correction was not taken into account [5].

The thickness of various layers was obtained from the surface profilometer structure 3.29 by use of a mechanical stylus-type profilometer. The thickness of the metallization, X_m , the oxide thickness over the emitter, X_{Oe} , the oxide thickness over the base, X_{Ob} , and the oxide thickness over the collector, X_{OC} , are listed in table 3. A profile of structure 3.29 is shown in figure 6 along with a schematic cross section. The profile shows in D the thickness of various layers, in C the contour of the silicon surface, in E and F the base-oxide islands, and in G the resolution of the metal pattern. The BASE (modified) mask was used where the base-oxide islands are squares 0.50 mil (12.7 μ m) on a side. The smallest line width on the metal pattern is 0.25 mil (6.4 μ m), and this line was clearly resolved. The roughness of the aluminum metallization is indicated by the spikes protruding from the metal.



Figure 6. The surface contour of the surface profilometer structure 3.29. The vertical scale factor is 50.0 nm/division and the horizontal scale factor is approximately 10 μ m/division. The A through G substructures are described in section 8.1.

The junction depths were obtained from the groove and stain method on unpatterned wafers included in the diffusion boat. The emitter junction depth, X_{je} , the base junction depth, X_{jb} , and the base width, X_{jbe} , are listed in table 3.

The primary purpose of this test pattern is to enable the evaluation of the resistivity-dopant density relation in both *n*- and *p*-type bulk silicon. This objective is currently being achieved by an ongoing program which uses test structures 3.8, 3.10, 3.17, and 3.26. The current status of this work is reviewed elsewhere [5]. Some other structures are used as diagnostic tools to verify that the structures of interest are fabricated properly. The remaining structures are experimental in nature and allow the exploration of new designs and measurement methods.

The novel designs developed in this test pattern include the piped-collector voltage taps which appear in structures 3.12, 3.17, and 3.18. This type of construction allows for the smallest contact area to bulk silicon while completely eliminating surface currents. The incorporation of a bulk Hall effect resistor (3.26) with other planar test structures is a novel feature of this test pattern, and this required the omission of the scribe avenues from the BASE and EMITTER masks. This omission does not hinder the scribing and breaking of wafers into chips. The combination of sheet resistance measurements from bridge (3.28) and van der Pauw (3.22) structures to obtain the effective base width is a new concept as is the orthogonal design of the van der Pauw structures (3.20, 3.21, and 3.22). This design is intended to be compatible with automatic pattern generators which draw only orthogonal lines. The incremental base sheet resistor (3.30) is an exploratory structure intended to assist in the automation of the incremental sheet resistance, anodic oxidation, dopant profile method. Its implementation awaits the development of a proper experimental apparatus. The incorporation of the surface profilometer structure (3.29) has proven invaluable especially in diagnosing fabrication problems with the collector four-probe resistor (3.17). Over-etch of the base-oxide islands was clearly visible in structure 3.29 (E) and (F). The modular arrangement of the five sheet and contact resistors (3.20, 3.21, 3.22, 3.23, 3.24) with four bonding pads arranged in a square is an attempt to assist the wafer probing of these structures. Other arrangements are possible; for example, the in-line pad array for structures 3.27 and 3.28; also see reference [1]. Optimum modular pad arrangements are being sought in conjunction with the design of various test structures.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The author wishes to thank all of the members of the Electronic Technology Division who have participated in both the fabrication and testing of the various test structures on this test pattern. In the following figures 7 through 10, the center-to-center distance between the scribe lines is 100 mils (2.54 mm).

Table 4 - Test Structures Shown in Figure 7

Number	Test Structure					
3.1	Collector resistor (FP, CS)					
3.2	MOS capacitor over base					
3.3	MOS capacitor over emitter					
3.4 N, P	Alignment markers					
3.5	NBS logo					
3.6	Tetrode transistor					
3.7	Collector resistor (DGR)					
3.8	MOS capacitor over collector (FP, CS)					
3.9	Emitter-base diode (FP)					
3.10	Base-collector diode (FP, CS)					
3.11	Base sheet resistor (VDP, FP, CS)					



Figure 7. Test pattern NBS-3 quadrant 1.

Number	Test Structure
3.12	Collector spreading resistor (small)
3.13	Bipolar transistor
3.14	Base-collector diode (FP, CS)
3.15	MOS transistor (circular)
3.16	MOS transistor
3.17	Collector four-probe resistor
3.18	Collector spreading resistor (large)
3.19	MOS capacitor over collector
3.20	Metal sheet resistor (VDP)
3.21	Emitter sheet resistor (VDP)
3.22	Base sheet resistor (VDP)
3.23	Metal-to-emitter contact resistor
3.24	Metal-to-base contact resistor
3.25	MOS capacitor over collector

Table 5 - Test Structures Shown in Figure 8



Figure 8. Test pattern NBS-3 quadrant 2.

Table 6.	Test	Structures	Shown	in	Figure	9
----------	------	------------	-------	----	--------	---

Number	Test Structure
3.26	Collector Hall effect resistor



Figure 9. Test pattern NBS-3 quadrant 3.

Number	Test Structure	
3.27	Emitter sheet resistor (B)	
3.28	Base sheet resistor (B)	
3.29	Surface profile structure	
3.30	Incremental base sheet resistor (VDP)	
3.31 B, E, C, M	Etch-control structures	
3.32 B, C, M	Resolution structures	
3.33	Metal step-coverage resistor	

Table 7. Test Structures Shown in Figure 10



Figure 10. Test pattern NBS-3 quadrant 4.

- 1. Buehler, M. G., Semiconductor Measurement Technology: Microelectronic Test Patterns: An Overview, NBS Spec. Publ. 400-6 (August, 1974).
- Irvin, J. C., Resistivity of Bulk Silicon and of Diffused Layers in Silicon, Bell System Tech. J. 41, 387-410 (1962).
- 3. Caughey, D. M., and Thomas, R. E., Carrier Mobilities in Silicon Empirically Related to Doping and Field, *Proc. of IEEE* 55, 2192-2193 (1967).
- Wagner, S., Diffusion of Boron from Shallow Ion Implants in Silicon, J. Electrochem. Soc. <u>119</u>, 1570-1576 (1972).
- Buehler, M. G., David, J. M., Mattis, R. L., Phillips, W. E., and Thurber, W. R., Semiconductor Measurement Technology: Planar Test Structures for Characterizing Impurities in Silicon, NBS Spec. Publ. 400-21 (December, 1975).
- B. Van Gelder, W., and Nicollian, E. H., Silicon Impurity Distribution as Revealed by Pulsed MOS C-V Measurements, J. Electrochem. Soc. <u>118</u>, 138-141 (1971).
- Deal, B. E., Grove, A. S., Snow, E. H., and Sah, C. T., Observation of Impurity Redistribution During Thermal Oxidation of Silicon Using the MOS Structure, J. Electrochem. Soc. 112, 308-314 (1965).
- Runyan, W. R., Silicon Semiconductor Technology, p. 180 (McGraw-Hill, New York, 1965).
- 9. Norton, P., Braggins, T., and Levinstein, H., Impurities and Lattice Scattering Parameters as Determined from Hall Mobility Analysis in *n*-Type Silicon, *Phys. Rev.* B8, 5632-5653 (1973).
- Buehler, M. G., Peripheral and Diffused Layer Effects on Doping Profiles, IEEE Trans. Electron Devices ED-19, 1171-1178 (1972).
- 11. Pomerantz, D., Measuring Mobility and Density of Charge Carriers Near a P-N Junction, J. Electrochem. Soc. <u>112</u>, 196-200 (1965); Pals, J. A., Method of Measuring Mobility of Majority Carriers in Silicon Devices, Electronics Letters 6, 503-504 (1970).
- 12. van der Pauw, L. J., A Method of Measuring the Resistivity and Hall Coefficient on Lamellae of Arbitrary Shape, *Philips Research Reports*, 13, 1-9 (1958).
- 13. Standard Method for Measuring Hall Mobility and Hall Coefficient in Extrinsic Semiconductor Single Crystals, ASTM Designation F 76, Annual Book of ASTM Standards, Part 43 (November, 1975). (Available as a separate reprint from American Society for Testing and Materials, 1916 Race Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103.)
- 14. Penny, W. M., and Lau, L., Eds., *MOS Integrated Circuits*, pp. 113-116 (van Nostrand Reinhold Company, New York, 1972).
- 15. Buehler, M. G., and David, J. M., Bridge and van der Pauw Sheet Resistors for Characterizing the Sheet Resistance and Oxide Window Width of Diffused Silicon Layers (in preparation).
- 16. Donovan, R. P., and Evans, R. A., Incremental Sheet Resistance Technique for Determining Diffusion Profiles, Silicon Device Processing, C. P. Marsden, Ed., NBS Spec. Publ. 337, pp. 123-131 (November, 1970).

- Thurber, W. R., and Smith, L. M., Incremental Sheet Resistance, Bullis, W. M., Ed., Semiconductor Measurement Technology, NBS Spec. Publ. 400-12 (May, 1975) p. 6.
- Kelley, F. R., Mattis, R. L., and Buehler, M. G., Metal-to-Base Contact Resistor Study, Semiconductor Measurement Technology, Bullis, W. M., Ed., NBS Spec. Publ. 400-1 (March, 1974) pp. 22-25.
- 19. Crosthwait, D. L., Jr., Ghate, P. B., and Smith., D. M., Screening of Metallization Step Coverage on Integrated Circuits, 11th Annual Proceedings, Reliability Physics 1973, pp. 254-260, IEEE Catalog No. 73 CHO 755-9 PHY.
- 20. Brooks, R. D., and Mattes, H. G., Spreading Resistance Between Constant Potential Surfaces, *Bell System Tech. J.* 50, 775-784 (1971).
- 21. Foxhall, G. F., and Lewis, J. A., The Resistance of an Infinite Slab with a Disk Electrode, *Bell System Tech. J.* 43, 1609-1617 (1964).
- 22. Bilotti, A. A., Static Temperature Distribution in IC Chips with Isothermal Heat Sources, *IEEE Trans. on Electron Devices* ED-21, 217-226 (1974).
- 23. Scott, W. T., The Physics of Electricity and Magnetism, pp. 88-89 (John Wiley, New York, 1959).
- Uhlir, A., Jr., The Potentials of Infinite Systems of Sources and Numerical Solutions of Problems in Semiconductor Engineering, *Bell System Tech.* J. 34, 105-128 (1955).
- 25. Buehler, M. G., and Thurber, W. R., A Planar Four-Probe Bulk Resistivity Test Structure, accepted for publication in *IEEE Trans. on Electron Devices* (August, 1976).
- 26. Chwang, R., Smith, B. J., and Crowell, C. R., Contact Size Effects on the van der Pauw Method for Resistivity and Hall Coefficient Measurements, *Solid-State Electronics* 17, 1217-1227 (1974).
- 27. Grove, A. S., Physics and Technology of Semiconductor Devices, p. 350 (John Wiley, New York, 1967).
- Mattis, R. L., and Buehler, M. G., Semiconductor Measurement Technology: A BASIC Program for Calculating Dopant Density Profiles from Capacitance-Voltage Data, NBS Spec. Publ. 400-11 (June, 1975).
- 29. Wu, C. P., Douglas, E. C., and Mueller, C. W., Limitations of the C-V Technique for Ion-Implanted Profiles, *IEEE Trans. on Electron Devices* <u>ED-22</u>, 319-329 (1975).
- Aiken, J. G., The Bipolar Tetrode as a Process Control Tool, Semiconductor Silicon 1973, H. R. Huff and R. R. Burgess, Eds., 759-768 (Electrochemical Society, Princeton, N. J., 1973).
- 31. Penney, W. M., and Lau, L., Eds., *MOS Integrated Circuits*, p. 80 (van Nostrand Reinhold Company, New York, 1972).
- 32. Kern, W., and Puotinen, D. A., Cleaning Solutions Based on Hydrogen Peroxide for Use in Silicon Semiconductor Technology, *RCA Review* <u>31</u>, 187-206 (1970).



NBS-114A (REV. 7-73)					
U.S. DEPT. OF COMM.	1. PUBLICATION OR REPORT NO.	2. Gov'	Accession 3	. Recipient'	s Accession No.
SHEET	Special Publication 400-22	No.			
4. TITLE AND SUBTITLE		L		5. Publicatio	n Date
Semiconductor Measu	urement Technology: Microele	ectron	ic	Tune	1976
Test Pattern NBS-3	for Evaluating the Resistivi	ty-Dop	pant d	. Performine	Organization Code
Density Relationsh	ip of Silicon				,
Martin G. Buehler			1	• Performing	, Organ. Report No.
9. PERFORMING ORGANIZAT	ION NAME AND ADDRESS		1	0. Project/T	ask/Work Unit No.
NATIONAL	SURFAIL OF STANDARDS			4	1258411
DEPARTMEN	T OF COMMERCE		1	1. Contract/	Grant No. ARPA
WASHINGTO	N, D.C. 20234			rder 2397	7, Pgm. Code 4D10;
12 Spansarias Organization Na		710	S	SPO IPR S	P-/5-4; DNA
NBS - Washington,	NBS - Washington, D. C. 20234			3. Type of R	eport & Period
DNA - Washington	, D. C. 20305			Covered	eport a remos
ARPA - 1400 Wilso	on Blvd., Arlington, Virgini	a 2220)9 1	4. Sponsorin	g Agency Code
SSPO - Dept. of Na	avy, Washington, D. C. 203	376			
15. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES					
I.	ibrary of Congress Catalog	Cardi	Number: 7	6 60002	2
	isially of Congress Catalog		aumper. 7	0-000032	
16. ABSTRACT (A 200-word or	less factual summary of most significant in	nformatio	n. If document i	ncludes a si	gnificant
bibliography or literature su	rvey, mention it here.)				
Test pattern NBS-3	is a microelectronic test ve	hicle	designed by	∕ the Nat	ional Bureau
of Standards to evalu	late the electronic materials	used	in discrete	e semicor	iductor devices
and integrated circuit	its. Designed for tabricatio	n on s	silicon wate	ers, the	test pattern
is an all in better t	four macks designated RASE E		DEFICATION OF CONTACT	and MET	Jies. The main
33 test structures si	ich as sheet resistors MAS c	anacit	ors n_n i	inctions	hipolar and
MOS transistors, and	etch control and resolution	struct	ures.	110010113 9	, biporar ana
The pattern was des	signed primarily to aid in th	e eval	luation of 1	the relat	cionship
between resistivity a	and dopant density in both n_{-}	and r	-type silid	con. Thi	s relation
is needed in the desi	ign of silicon solid-state de	vices	and in the	analysis	s of various
physical measurements	 Other test structures are 	inclu	ided for use	e as diag	pnostic tools
to verify that proper	 fabrication procedures were 	follo	wed. The w	remaining	j structures
allow the exploration	ו of new designs and measurem	ent me	thods.		
The structures are	arranged in a square pattern	1 200 n	nil (5.08 mr	n) on a s	side. A
detailed layout of ea	ich test structure is present	ed inc	cluding both	1 a top V	/1ew and a
the formulas for eval	. A description of each stru	ciure	is given an	la where t donsity	appricable
resistance are given	the formulas for evaluating such quantities as resistivity, dopant density, and sheet				
transistor process ar	d values obtained from vario	us tes	st structure	s are nr	resented.
		45 665			coentodar
17. KEY WORDS (six to twelve	entries; alphabetical order; capitalize only	the first	t letter of the first	stkey word u	inless a proper
name; separated by semicol	ons)			C I I	
Dopant density; mid	croelectronics; MUS capacitor	's; n−p	-n transis	cor fabri	cation;
p-n Junctions; res	structures	ronics	s; sneet res	sistors;	silicon;
Lest pattern, test			19 SECURITY		21. NO OF PAGES
16. AVAILABILITY	XX Unlimited		(THIS REPO	ORT)	
For Official Distributio	n. Do Not Release to NTIS				57
			UNCL ASSIF	IED	51
X Order From Sup. of Doc	., U.S. Government Printing Office		20. SECURITY	CLASS	22. Price
Washington, D.C. 20402	2, <u>SD Cat. No. C13. 10:400-22</u>		(THIS PAG	E)	01 / 5
Order From National Te	chnical Information Service (NTIS)		UNCLASSIE	IFD	\$1.45
Springfield, Virginia 22	1)1		UNCLASSIF	net)	



Announcement of New Publications on Semiconductor Measurement Technology

Superintendent of Documents, Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 20402

Dear Sir:

Please add my name to the announcement list of new publications to be issued in the series: National Bureau of Standards Special Publication 400-.

Name		
Company		
Address		
City	State	Zip Code
(Notification Key N-413)		

PERIODICALS

JOURNAL OF RESEARCH reports National Bureau of Standards research and development in physics, mathematics, and chemistry. It is published in two sections, available separately:

• Physics and Chemistry (Section A)

Papers of interest primarily to scientists working in these fields. This section covers a broad range of physical and chemical research, with major emphasis on standards of physical measurement, fundamental constants, and properties of matter. Issued six times a year. Annual subscription: Domestic, \$17.00; Foreign, \$21.25.

• Mathematical Sciences (Section B)

Studies and compilations designed mainly for the mathematician and theoretical physicist. Topics in mathematical statistics, theory of experiment design, numerical analysis, theoretical physics and chemistry, logical design and programming of computers and computer systems. Short numerical tables. Issued quarterly. Annual subscription: Domestic, \$9.00; Foreign, \$11.25.

DIMENSIONS/NBS (formerly Technical News Bulletin)—This monthly magazine is published to inform scientists, engineers, businessmen, industry, teachers, students, and consumers of the latest advances in science and technology, with primary emphasis on the work at NBS. The magazine highlights and reviews such issues as energy research, fire protection, building technology, metric conversion, pollution abatement, health and safety, and consumer product performance. In addition, it reports the results of Bureau programs in measurement standards and techniques, properties of matter and materials, engineering standards and services, instrumentation, and automatic data processing.

Annual subscription: Domestic, \$9.45; Foreign, \$11.85.

NONPERIODICALS

Monographs—Major contributions to the technical literature on various subjects related to the Bureau's scientific and technical activities.

Handbooks—Recommended codes of engineering and industrial practice (including safety codes) developed in cooperation with interested industries, professional organizations, and regulatory bodies.

Special Publications—Include proceedings of conferences sponsored by NBS, NBS annual reports, and other special publications appropriate to this grouping such as wall charts, pocket cards, and bibliographies.

Applied Mathematics Series—Mathematical tables, manuals, and studies of special interest to physicists, engineers, chemists, biologists, mathematicians, computer programmers, and others engaged in scientific and technical work.

National Standard Reference Data Series—Provides quantitative data on the physical and chemical properties of materials, compiled from the world's literature and critically evaluated. Developed under a world-wide program coordinated by NBS. Program under authority of National Standard Data Act (Public Law 90-396).

NOTE: At present the principal publication outlet for these data is the Journal of Physical and Chemical Reference Data (JPCRD) published quarterly for NBS by the American Chemical Society (ACS) and the American Institute of Physics (AIP). Subscriptions, reprints, and supplements available from ACS, 1155 Sixteenth St. N. W., Wash. D. C. 20056.

Building Science Series—Disseminates technical information developed at the Bureau on building materials, components, systems, and whole structures. The series presents research results, test methods, and performance criteria related to the structural and environmental functions and the durability and safety characteristics of building elements and systems.

Technical Notes—Studies or reports which are complete in themselves but restrictive in their treatment of a subject. Analogous to monographs but not so comprehensive in scope or definitive in treatment of the subject area. Often serve as a vehicle for final reports of work performed at NBS under the sponsorship of other government agencies.

Voluntary Product Standards—Developed under procedures published by the Department of Commerce in Part 10, Title 15, of the Code of Federal Regulations. The purpose of the standards is to establish nationally recognized requirements for products, and to provide all concerned interests with a basis for common understanding of the characteristics of the products. NBS administers this program as a supplement to the activities of the private sector standardizing organizations.

Federal Information Processing Standards Publications (FIPS PUBS)—Publications in this series collectively constitute the Federal Information Processing Standards Register. Register serves as the official source of information in the Federal Government regarding standards issued by NBS pursuant to the Federal Property and Administrative Services Act of 1949 as amended, Public Law 89-306 (79 Stat. 1127), and as implemented by Executive Order 11717 (38 FR 12315, dated May 11, 1973) and Part 6 of Title 15 CFR (Code of Federal Regulations).

Consumer Information Series—Practical information, based on NBS research and experience, covering areas of interest to the consumer. Easily understandable language and illustrations provide useful background knowledge for shopping in today's technological marketplace.

NBS Interagency Reports (NBSIR)—A special series of interim or final reports on work performed by NBS for outside sponsors (both government and non-government). In general, initial distribution is handled by the sponsor; public distribution is by the National Technical Information Service (Springfield, Va. 22161) in paper copy or microfiche form.

Order NBS publications (except NBSIR's and Bibliographic Subscription Services) from: Superintendent of Documents, Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 20402.

BIBLIOGRAPHIC SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES

The following current-awareness and literature-survey bibliographies are issued periodically by the Bureau: Cryogenic Data Center Current Awareness Service

A literature survey issued biweekly. Annual subscription: Domestic, \$20.00; foreign, \$25.00.

Liquefied Natural Gas. A literature survey issued quarterly. Annual subscription: \$20.00.

Superconducting Devices and Materials. A literature

survey issued quarterly. Annual subscription: \$20.00. Send subscription orders and remittances for the preceding bibliographic services to National Bureau of Standards, Cryogenic Data Center (275.02) Boulder, Colorado 80302.

Electromagnetic Metrology Current Awareness Service Issued monthly. Annual subscription: \$24.00. Send subscription order and remittance to Electromagnetics Division, National Bureau of Standards, Boulder, Colo. 80302.

U.S. DÉPARTMENT OF COMMERCE National Bureau of Standards Washington, D.C. 20234

OFFICIAL BUSINESS

Penalty for Private Use, \$300

POSTAGE AND FEES PAID U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE COM-215



SPECIAL FOURTH-CLASS RATE BOOK



